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DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 

NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
MINUTES OF THE April 2, 2015 GENERAL SESSION 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order 

Chairman Andrew J. MacKay called the meeting to order at 9:30a.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

Present in Las Vegas: Commissioner George Assad, Commissioner Keith A. Sakelhide, 

Administrative Attorney James Day, Applications Manager Liz Babcock, Financial Analyst Lidia 

Aronova, Chief of Enforcement Michael Bradford, Senior Deputy Attorney General David Newton.   

Present in Reno: Chairman Andrew J. MacKay 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

Commissioner George Assad led a recital of the Pledge. 

 

4. Public Comment  

Matthew Burningham, requested a discussion item at a future general session for removing profits of 

tow companies for theft recovery vehicles. 

 

5. Approval of Agenda  

Administrative Attorney Day requested that Item 74 be considered after Item 112, and that Items 

115 and 117 be removed.  Richard Kapperman requested that Item 110 be moved up for earlier 

consideration.  Chairman MacKay agreed to move Item 110 to just after the citation and 

impoundment items.  Approved as modified 3-0 

 

6. Approval of the Minutes of the February 26, 2015 Agenda Meeting  

Approved 3-0 

 

7. Briefings from the Commissioners 

Commissioner Assad thanked Authority legal counsel and Staff. Commissioner Sakelhide echoed 

Commissioner Assad’s comments and noted the extraordinary volume of matter on today’s Agenda.  

Chairman MacKay expressed gratitude to Authority Staff and reported that the May 2015 General 

Session had been rescheduled to Wednesday, May 6, 2015 rather than the typical Thursday setting 

to avoid conflict with the Legislature’s schedule.  Chairman MacKay also extended thoughts and 

prayers to Deputy Commissioner Skibinski and her family. 
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8. Briefing from the Deputy Commissioner 

None  

 

9. Report of Legal Counsel 

Senior Deputy Attorney General Newton reported that in the O’Connor matter, he has resubmitted the 

paperwork to the court and in the Custom Towing matter, their Petition was denied and the ruling of the 

Authority was upheld.  The fine is now due and payable. 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS 

Items 10 through 87, with the exception of Items 48 and 74.  Approved 3-0 
 

10. Citation 16993 issued to Doyle Dial and UBER Technologies, Inc. for violations of NRS 706.386 and 

NRS 706.758. (AJM)  

 

11. Citation 16988 issued to Johanna Trelles and UBER Technologies, Inc. for violations of NRS 706.386 

and NRS 706.758. (AJM)  

 

12. Citations 16977 and 16978 issued to Stephen Barnes for violations of NRS 706.386, NRS 706.758, 

and NAC 706.329. (AJM)  

 

13. Impound 2451 and Citation 17452.  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of the vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17452 issued to Tomas Garcia-Ramirez for violations of NRS 706.386 and 

NRS 706.758. (AJM)  

 

14. Citation 17173 issued to Lawrence Weininger and About Time Limousines, LLC for violations of 

NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (AJM)  

 

15. Citation 17325 issued to Kevin Carty and UBER Technologies, Inc. for violations of NRS 706.386 

and NRS 706.758. (AJM)  

 

16. Impound 1994 and Citation 17337.  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17337 issued to Geoffrey Woglom and Independent Taxi for violations of 

NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (AJM)  

 

17. Impound 2330 and Citation 17349.  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17349 issued to Cameron Princeau for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (AJM)  

 

18. Impound 2470. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to William G. Foy 

Jr. (AJM)  

 

19. Impound I-2338. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Torin M. 

Gallo. (AJM)  

 

20. Citation 16996 issued to Torin Gallo and UBER Technologies, Inc. for violations of NRS 706.386 

and NRS 706.758. (AJM)  

 

21. Citation 16995 issued to Kiran Hill and UBER Technologies, Inc. for violations of NRS 706.386 and 

NRS 706.758. (AJM)  

 



 

 

22. Impound 2327 and Citation 17282. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17282 issued to Zachary Moran for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (AJM)  

 

23. Impound 2121 and Citation 17281. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17281 issued to Michael Hull for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (AJM)  

 

24. Citations 16916 and 16919 issued to Earth Buses, LLC for violations of NAC 706.191 (46 counts) 

and NRS 706.463 (4). (GA)  

 

25. Citation 17399 issued to Luis Alberto Castillo-Fiesco for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (GA)  

 

26. Citation 17403 issued to Ashley Jackson for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (GA)  

 

27. Citation 17413 issued to Oscar Orozco for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (GA)  

 

28. Impound 2484 Citation 17478. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of the vehicle registered 

to and Citation 17478 issued to Steven Maurice Lewis for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (GA)  

 

29. Citation 17407 issued to Yonas Berhe Meshesha for violations of NAC 706.228 (2 counts) and NAC 

706.329 (2 counts). (GA)  

 

30. Citation 17215 issued to Vernon Brinson for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (GA)  

 

31. Impound 2482 and Citation 17476. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17476 issued to Christopher H. Magee for violations of NRS 706.386 and 

NRS 706.758. (GA)  

 

32. Impound 2476. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Oscar Orozco. 

(GA)  

 

33. Impound TA 150109-008. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.88395 of a vehicle registered to 

Myoung Nash. (GA)  

 

34. Citation TA 8-00040607 issued to Kyujin Cho for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. 

(GA)  

 

35. Impound 2481 and Citation 17415. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17415 issued to Rajnish Vij for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (GA)  

 

36. Impound 2469. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Norma Aguilar-

Cano. (GA)  

 

37. Citation 17111 issued to Juan Blanco for violation of NRS 706.758. (KAS)  

 



 

 

38. Impound 2472 and Citation 16316. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 16316 issued to Lekayviaun Michah-Thomas Sykes for violations of NRS 

706.386 and NRS 706.758. (KAS)  

 

39. Citations 16743 and 16744 issued to Quality Towing for violations of NAC 706.4275 (10 counts), 

NAC 706.311 (84 counts) and NAC 706.432 (84 counts).(KAS)  

 

40. Citation 17069 issued to Juan Blanco and S & L Investments for a violation of NRS 706.386. (KAS)  

 

41. Citation 17245 issued to John David Crumley for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. 

(KAS)  

 

42. Citation 17245 issued to Donald Johnson for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (KAS)  

 

43. Citation 17258 issued to Sierra Moving Systems for a violation of NAC 706.285. (KAS)  

 

44. Citation 17250 issued to Marcus Block for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (KAS)  

 

45. Citation 17414 issued to Derrick Burroughs and Sin City Movers for violations of NRS 706.386 and 

NRS 706.758. (KAS)  

 

46. Citation 17260 issued to Cal Nevada Towing for violations of NRS 706.4479 (6 counts) and NAC 

706.420. (KAS)  

 

47. Impound 1510 and Citation 17338. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17338 issued to Vincent Congiusti for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (KAS)  

 

48. Impound 2467 and Citation 17389 the impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17389 issued to Donald Rubenstein for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (KAS)  

Mr. Rubenstein appeared and asked for clarification with regard to fines, and asked that the hearing be 

reset. Commissioner Sakelhide indicated his agreement to rehear the matter.  Hearing to be April 8, 2015 

at 1:30 p.m. 

 

49. Citation 17346 issued to Tuihalangingie Finau for a violation of NAC 706.234. (KAS)  

 

50. Citation 17382 issued to Mulubrhan Dagnew for a violation of NRS 706.386.(KAS)  

 

51.  Citation 17280 issued to James Gordon for a violation of NAC 706.234. (KAS)  

 

52. Citation 17333 issued to Kazi Kader for a violation of NAC 706.234. (KAS)  

 

53. Impound 2364 and Citation 17418. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 

registered to and Citation 17418 issued to Mikyung Park for violations of NRS 706.386. (KAS)  

 

54. Citation 17419 issued to Phan Xuan for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (KAS)  

 

55. Citation 17421 issued to Chong Cho for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (KAS)  

 

56. Citation 17427 issued to Speedy Recovery, Inc. for a violation of NAC 706.203. (KAS)  



 

 

 

57. Citation 17477 issued to Anita Brenda-Antoinette Baker for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 

706.758. (KAS)  

 

58. Impound 2477. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Janet 

Burroughs and Sin City Movers, LLC. (KAS)  

 

59. Impound 2443. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Gabriel Ortiz-

Ruiz. (KAS)  

 

60. Impound 2487. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Usong Cho. 

(KAS)  

 

61. Citation TA 8-00047941 issued to Juan Blanco for violation of NRS 706.386. (KAS)  

 

62. Impound 2486. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to EAN Holdings, 

LLC. (KAS)  

 

63. Impound 2483. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Aqueriya 

Renee Bennett. (KAS)  

 

64. Impound 2485. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Tho Nhi Thi 

Huynh. (KAS)  

 

65. Citation TA 8-00040732 issued to Danika A. Jones for violation of NRS 706.386. (KAS)  

 

66. Citation TA 8-00040703 issued to James Grangeia and UBER Technologies, Inc. for violations of 

NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758. (KAS)  

 

67. Impound TA 150320-079. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.88395 of a vehicle registered to 

Byron Ochoa. (KAS)  

 

68. Citation TA 8-00040143 issued to Byron Ochoa for a violation of NRS 706.386. (KAS)  

 

69. Impound TA 150101-006. The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.88395 of a vehicle registered to 

Byron Ochoa. (KAS)  

 

70. Citations 17084 and 17085 issued to Titan Towing for violations of NAC 706.432 (2 counts).  

 

71. Citation 16021 issued to ALV Limousine for a violation of NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.11.  

 

72. Citation 16917 Glen’s Mobile Repair issued to for a violation of NAC 706.247/49 CFR 391.25 (a)(b) 

(2 counts).  

 

73. Citation 16954 issued to DKBM Enterprise, Inc. d/b/a Ruckus Transportation for a violation of NAC 

706.203.  

 

74. Citation 17030 issued to Dejen Yfter for a violation of NAC 706.329.  

To be considered after Item 112. Approved 3-0 

 

75. Citation 17163 issued to Whittlesea Taxi for a violation of NAC 706.360.  



 

 

 

76. Citation 16918 issued to A. A. Action Towing, Inc. for a violation of NAC 706.191.  

 

77. Citation 17378 issued to Shaul Marketing, Inc. d/b/a Triple 7 Movers for violation of NAC 

706.247/49 CFR 391.51 (7)(i) (2 counts).  

 

78. Citation 17210 issued to Eric Berri for a violation of NAC 706.234.  

 

79. Citation 17254 issued to Bosch Motors Towing, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.311 (3 counts) and 

NAC 706.420.  

 

80. Citation 17554 issued to Southern Nevada Movers for a violation of NAC 706.247/49 CFR 396.21.  

 

81. Citation 17420 issued to 24/7 Towing for a violation of NRS 706.4479.  

 

82. Citation 17339 issued to Tracy Desjardins for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758.  

 

83. Citation 17411 issued to Chykkos Towing for a violation of NRS 706.451.  

 

84. Citation 17344 issued to Tom Taylor for a violation of NAC 706.234.  

 

85. Citation 17404 issued to Daniel Abraham for a violation of NAC 706.228.  

 

86. Citation 17412 issued to 777 Towing for a violation of NRS 706.451.  

 

87. Citation 17343 issued to Rashed Zzaman for a violation of NAC 706.376.  

 

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND 

NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE 

 

88. Docket 13-12012 The ex post facto joint application of Peter Lahner for authority to transfer and 

Brenda Mae Lahner to acquire Alpine Auto Service, Inc. d/b/a Alpine Towing, a carrier authorized to 

provide tow car service under CPCN 7070.  Staff investigation concluded. (AJM)   

Item 88 and 89 were considered collectively. Approved 3-0 

 

89. Docket 13-12013 The joint application of Brenda Mae Lahner for authority to sell and transfer and 

Boyd Golden to purchase and acquire Alpine Auto Service, Inc. d/b/a Alpine Towing, a carrier 

authorized to provide tow car service under CPCN 7070.  Staff investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Chairman MacKay summarized the dockets and Applications Manager Liz Babcock indicated staff 

support.  Approved 3-0 

 

90. Docket 14-04020 The expired extended temporary discontinuance from September 19, 2014 through 

March 1, 2015 of services provided by Terry Escoffier d/b/a High Desert Towing & Recovery under 

CPCN 7282.  Staff’s recommendation as to whether the Authority should issue an Order to Show 

Cause why the CPCN should be revoked.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Chairman MacKay summarized the docket and gave a brief procedural history.  Applications Manager Liz 

Babcock indicated staff requested an Order to Show Cause be heard at the May 6, 2015 Agenda.  

Approved 3-0 

 



 

 

91. Docket 15-02026 The temporary discontinuance from February 18, 2015 through August 18, 2015 of 

services provided by Juan A. Wong d/b/a J.A.W. Towing under CPCN 7321.  Staff investigation 

concluded.  

Chairman MacKay summarized the docket, Applications Manager Liz Babcock indicated the filing was 

done on February 19, 2015.  Approved 3-0 

 

92. Docket 15-03019 The temporary discontinuance from March 12, 2015 through September 12, 2015 of 

services provided by PDQ Towing, LLC under CPCN 7278.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Chairman MacKay summarized the request.  Applications Manager Liz Babcock stated they are located 

in Winnemucca.  Approved 3-0 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND 

NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE 

 

93. Docket 14-05025 The Application of Inside Vegas, LLC d/b/a My Driver in Vegas for a certificate 

of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  Staff 

investigation concluded. (GA)  

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support.  James 

Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicant and requested the staging language be modified.  

Approved as modified 3-0 

 

94. Docket 15-02010 The Application of Personal Sedan Service, LLC d/b/a PSS for a certificate of 

public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  Staff 

investigation concluded. (GA)  

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application, stated the application included a logo 

approval and indicated staff support.  James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicant and 

requested the staging language be modified.  Approved as modified 3-0 

 

95. Docket 15-03022 The continued temporary discontinuance from March 17, 2015 through September 

17, 2015 of services provided by Las Vegas Host, LLC d/b/a Midnight Star Transportation under 

CPCN 2173.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application.  Stuart Lindsey appeared on his own 

behalf.  Approved 3-0 

EXEMPTION REQUESTS 

 

96. Docket 15-02015 Blowin Sand Rodz Rental & Tours, LLC d/b/a Vegas Off Road Tours seeks a 

declaration of exemption pursuant to NAC 706.147 from the requirement to obtain a CPCN to provide 

intrastate commercial passenger transportation/tours in Nevada.   

Debra Stotts appeared on behalf of Vegas Off Road Tours and gave a statement with regard to the 

request.  Authority Staff raised the issue of the drop off location being other than the domicile address.  

Approved 3-0 

VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS 

 

97. Docket 15-02038 The voluntary cancellation of Khan Transportation, Inc. d/b/a Vegas Mobile VIP 

CPCN 2174.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application.  Approved 3-0 

 

98. Docket 15-02040 The voluntary cancellation of Global Access, LLC d/b/a Global Transportation, 

LLC CPCN 2131.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application.  Approved 3-0 

 



 

 

99. Docket 15-03024 The voluntary cancellation of Samuel International Corp d/b/a SBT Bus Line CPCN 

2129.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application.  Approved 3-0 

 

NAME CHANGES 

 

100. Dockets 13-09009 and 15-02025 The Petition of Lewis Carriages, Inc. for final approval to change 

their name to add d/b/a All Resort Limousine for services provided under CPCN 1125.  Staff 

investigation concluded.  

Dana Warring appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Applications Manager Liz Babcock indicated this 

carrier is currently in their compliance period.  Approved 3-0 

 

101. Docket 15-02035 The Petition of Ken Lehman Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a South Strip Towing to change 

their name to add d/b/a SST for services provided under CPCN 7203, Sub 3.  Staff investigation 

concluded.  

Chairman MacKay summarized the application.  Applications Manager Liz Babcock stated this was 

done to bring them into compliance.  Approved 3-0 

 

PETITION FOR LOGO APPROVAL 

 

102. Docket 15-03006 The Petition of Vegas VIP Transportation, LLC d/b/a Vegas VIP and d/b/a Vegas 

VIP Limousine for final approval of a logo for operations conducted under CPCNs 2157 and 1095, 

respectively, within the State of Nevada.  

Dan Nunes appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 3-0 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR WAREHOUSE PERMITS 

 

103. Docket 14-04017 The Application of Big Box Storage Nevada, Inc. for discussion regarding failure 

to meet compliances for a Warehouse Permit.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Jason Earl appeared on behalf of Big Box Storage and reported on their current status.   

 

104. Docket 14-11028 The Application of Southern Nevada Movers, Inc. for a Warehouse Permit.  Staff 

investigation concluded. (KAS)  

Applications Manager Liz Babcock detailed the method used to calculate the square footage and that the 

applicant has provided the proof of insurance.  Jeff Lippincott appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  

Permit approved 3-0 

APPLICATIONS FOR VAN POOL 

 

105. Docket 15-03005 The Application of The Service Companies, Inc. for approval of an employer van 

pool. Staff investigation concluded.  

Chairman MacKay summarized the request.  Leonard Daigle appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  

Approved 3-0 

PETITIONS FOR RECONSIDERATION 

 

106. Docket 14-12001. The Authority at its December 2014 general session granted Petitioner Carlos 

Fitzpatrick deviation from NAC 706.229, deeming him eligible to be hired as a limousine driver 

despite his failure to appear at a citation hearing where he was found in violation of a provision of 

NAC 706 (Citation 15838).  Authority Staff requests that the Authority revoke its prior grant and 

again place Mr. Fitzpatrick on the ineligible driver list based upon his failure to maintain compliance 

with a payment plan. (GA)   



 

 

James Kent, Esquire and Carlos Fitzpatrick appeared and indicated an account has been set up, two 

payments have been made and the plan to comply by June 2015 is in place.  Staff withdraws request to 

revoke prior grant. 

 

107. Docket 15-03027  Petitioner High Performance Capital, Inc. seeks reconsideration of the fine 

amounts set forth in the Authority’s December 18, 2014 final Order in the matter of Impound TA 

141031-023. (GA)  

Trevor Hayes, Esquire appeared in Reno on behalf of the Petitioner and requested a reduction of the 

impound fine amount.  Commissioner Assad recommended the reduction of the impound fine to 

$1,000.00.  Approved 3-0 

 

108. Docket 14-12023. Petitioner Abderrahim  Mansouri seeks deviation from NAC 706.229, in that he 

wishes to be deemed eligible to be hired as a limousine driver despite his failure to timely pay the 

fine amount assessed for Citation 16863 (final Order from May 2014 general session).   

Abderrahim Mansouri appeared and requested the removal of his name from the ineligible list.  

Approved 3-0  

 

109. Docket 15-01001. Petitioner Ali Robso seeks reconsideration of the fine amounts set forth in the 

final Order for Citation 16855 (May 2014 general session). The Petitioner requests that the total fine 

amount be reduced from $850.00 to $350.00 $300.00, the amount he has paid to date.  

Ali Robso appeared and offered a statement of his financial hardship.  Commissioner Assad indicated he 

would be inclined to lower the fine amount to monies paid.  Approved 3-0 

 

110. Docket 15-03029 Petitioner Richard Kapperman seeks reconsideration of the Authority’s final Order 

in the matter of Citation 17252.  Mr. Kapperman was the underlying complainant (I-1411-007) in the 

matter.  The Authority dismissed the alleged violations by Respondent City Auto Towing.  (AJM)  

Mr. Kapperman appeared in Reno and offered a lengthy statement with regard to the dismissal of the 

violations against City Auto Towing.  A discussion ensued with regard to the alleged violations.  Petition 

denied 3-0   

 

111. Docket 15-03031  Petitioner Malik Alamudeen seeks deviation from NAC 706.229, in that he 

wishes to be deemed eligible to be hired as a limousine driver despite his failure to timely pay the 

fine amount assessed for Citation 16774 (final Order from May 2014 general session).   

Malik Alamudeen appeared and offered a statement and requested the removal of his name from the 

ineligible list.  Approved 3-0 

 

112. Citation 17030.  On March 9, 2015, Petitioner Dejen Yfter appeared at the offices of the Authority 

and verbally requested that the Authority set aside its prior final Order in the matter of Citation 

17030, in which the Petitioner was fined $400.00 for a violation of NAC 706.329.  Mr. Yfter had no 

prior violations but failed to appear at the hearing.  Mr. Yfter and Authority Staff, by Senior Deputy 

Attorney General David Newton, entered into a settlement agreement to resolve Citation 17030 for a 

$200.00 fine, contingent upon the Authority setting aside its prior final Order. (KAS)  

Senior Deputy Attorney General Newton detailed the reasoning behind the set aside and subsequent 

settlement agreement.  Items 112 and 74 approved 3-0 

 

113. Public Comment  

John Chalaye, Vegas Limo Coach, offered a statement with regard to public safety and the party bus/club 

crawl business serving alcohol to minors.  He requested a higher enforcement presence and that the 

Authority open a discussion item to address the issue.  Additionally, he offered a statement regarding 

illegal rides. 

 



 

 

 

1:15 PM AFTERNOON SESSION 

 

114. Public Comment  
None 

FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS 

 

115. Docket 14-01001-09 The Application of 24/7 Entertainment, LLC d/b/a 24/7 Entertainment 

Limousines for approval of a tariff rate modification for charter bus service conducted under CPCN 

2073, Sub 1.  Staff investigation concluded.  

This item was removed from the Agenda prior to consideration.   

 

116. Docket 15-02011 The Application of Move 4 Less, LLC d/b/a Move 4 Less, MoveU4Less.com, for 

approval of a tariff rate modification for household goods moving service conducted under CPCN 

3344, Sub 5.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the application and indicated staff support.  Donovan 

Vandever appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Approved 3-0 

 

117. Docket 15-03026 The Application of SuperShuttle Las Vegas, LLC for approval of a tariff rate 

modification for services conducted under CPCN 1089, Sub 3.  Staff investigation concluded.  

This item was removed from the Agenda prior to consideration. 

 

118. Docket 15-03028 The Application of Curtis H. Vahl d/b/a Roadside Rescue for approval of a tariff 

rate modification for tow car services conducted under CPCN 7252.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the application and indicated staff support.  Approved 3-0 

 

119. Docket 15-03030 The Application of Open Top Sightseeing Las Vegas, LLC d/b/a Big Bus Tours for 

approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 2004, Sub 12.  Staff 

investigation concluded.  

Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the application and indicated staff support.  Kimberly 

Maxson-Rushton, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Approved 3-0 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR DRIVER PERMITS 
 

120. Permit 1646 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of David Kenneth Baer 

for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  The Applicant failed to appear at a 

February 27, 2015 investigative hearing regarding his Application.  Staff investigation concluded. 

(AJM)  

Application permit withdrawn, no further action. 

 

121. Permit 1385 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Kristel M. Hart for 

issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  The Authority revoked the Applicant’s 

interim permit at the February 26, 2015 general session and invited the Applicant to appear at a 

subsequent general session to present additional evidence and argument supporting the issuance of 

the permanent driver permit.  Staff investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Permit denied 3-0 

 

 

 

 



 

 

122. Permit 1635 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Hung Duong for 

issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  At an investigative hearing on March 4, 

2015, the Applicant agreed to undergo a test for drugs of abuse and submit the results to the 

Authority no later than March 26, 2015.  The Applicant failed to submit such results.  Staff 

investigation concluded. (GA)  

Permit denied 3-0 

 

123. Permit 1633 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Michael Purdy for 

issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  At the March 9, 2015 investigative hearing, 

the Hearing Officer noted that the Applicant appeared to have a conviction of the type described in 

NRS 706.462(3)(a)(3), and that the record did not disclose the disposition of 2014 felony charges.  

The Hearing Officer directed the Applicant to submit a brief on these issues no later than March 31, 

2015.  Staff investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Permit denied 3-0 

 

124. Permit 1625 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Talaiasi Finau for 

issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  At an investigative hearing on March 9, 

2015, the Applicant agreed to submit documentation no later than March 24, 2015 disclosing the 

disposition of certain charges.  The Applicant failed to submit such documentation.  Staff 

investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Permit denied 3-0 

 

125. Permit 1654 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Jonathan Bentley for 

issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  At an investigative hearing on March 2, 

2015, the Applicant agreed to submit documentation no later than March 24, 2015 disclosing the 

disposition of certain charges.  The Applicant failed to submit such documentation.  Staff 

investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Permit denied 3-0 

 

126. Permit 1651 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Antonio Corleone for 

issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  At an investigative hearing on March 2, 

2015, the Applicant agreed to submit documentation no later than March 24, 2015 disclosing the 

disposition of certain charges.  The Applicant failed to submit such documentation.  Staff 

investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Permit denied 3-0 

 

127. Permit 1638 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Jean Ann Rex for 

issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  At an investigative hearing on March 2, 

2015, the Applicant agreed to submit documentation no later than March 24, 2015 including a local 

work card and documents indicating the disposition of certain charges.  The Applicant failed to 

submit such documentation.  Staff investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Jean Ann Rex was present in Reno and provided additional information.  Motion to deny the permit – 

motion fails.  Motion to allow additional time for review Approved 3-0 

 

128. Permit 1655 The Authority will determine whether to grant the application of Jessica Nunes for 

issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  The Applicant failed to appear at an 

investigative hearing on March 9, 2015.  Staff investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Item withdrawn, hearing scheduled for April 6, 2015 9:30 a.m.  

 

  

 



 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS 

 

129. Docket 13-09015 The Application of Astillita Productions, Inc. d/b/a Acme Moving Co. for a 

certificate of public convenience and necessity to operate as a household goods mover in the State of 

Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (AJM)  

Chairman MacKay summarized the application and indicated his support.  Applications Manager Liz 

Babcock indicated the proposed rates are within the range of rates and staff supports this application.  

James Kent, Esquire and M. Rodriguez appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Approved 3-0 

 

130. Docket 14-09001 The Application of Age Wise Relocation, LLC for a certificate of public 

convenience and necessity to operate as a household goods mover in the State of Nevada.  Staff 

investigation concluded. (KAS)  

Commissioner Sakelhide summarized the application and indicated his support.  Applications Manager 

Liz Babcock indicated staff supports this application. Sharon Allen appeared in Reno on behalf of the 

Applicant.  Approved 3-0 

 

131. Docket 14-11016 The Joint Application of Exotic Limousines, Inc. for authority to sell and transfer 

and of Vegas VIP Transportation, LLC d/b/a Vegas VIP Limousine to purchase and acquire the 

authority to provide charter livery limousine service within the State of Nevada granted under CPCN 

1095.  Staff investigation concluded. (KAS)  

Commissioner Sakelhide summarized the application and indicated his support. Dan Nunes appeared on 

behalf of Vegas VIP Limousine.  Applications Manager Liz Babcock indicated staff supports this 

application. Approved 3-0 

 

REQUEST TO OPEN RULEMAKING DOCKET 

 

132. City Towing, Inc. dba Quality Towing (CPCN 3069) has requested that the Authority consider 

opening a rulemaking docket to address the industry practice of “relocation tows,” involving the 

towing of a vehicle to an adjacent location rather than to the tow carrier’s storage yard, such as in the 

instance of repaving of a community parking lot.  

Chairman MacKay summarized the request.  Bruce San Fillipo appeared on behalf of Quality Towing.  

Brandon Sendall, Esquire appeared in Reno.  Commissioner Sakelhide recommended a rulemaking 

docket be opened after the current legislative session ends.  Approval to open docket 3-0 

 

133. Public Comment  

Michelle Baumgarner, Esquire questioned the outcome of Item 121 for Kristel Hart Driver Permit 1385.   

 

134. Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 2:40 p.m. 

 


